
 Bainville Town Council Meeting  
City Office 

211 Clark Ave. East 
Monday April 11, 2022 at 7:00 PM  

 

 

I. Call Meeting to Order  

II. Pledge of Allegiance  

III. Roll Call—Establish a quorum  
 ____ Mayor, Toby Romo    ____ Councilperson, Nick Tester  
 ____ Councilperson, Matt Giese      ____ Councilperson, Carol Rasmussen 

IV. Approval of Agenda 

V. Approval of Meeting minutes dated March 14, 2022. 
VI. Treasurers Report 

• Approve claims with checks dated April 11, 2022.   
• Approve JV, UB Vouchers, Payroll slips.  

• Review monthly bank reconciliation report 
• Review delinquent accounts. 
• Approve mayor and president of council to sign April payroll checks. 

VII. Public Comments or Formal Complaints on items not on agenda.  
VIII. Department or Committee Reports  

• Public Works/Fire Chief Report: 

• Update on Plan for Town fire protection. 

• Roosevelt County Sheriff’s Department Update. 

• Local Emergency Planning Committee Update. 
IX. Old Business 

• Dakota Land Home on the property transfer.  No correspondence. 

• ARPA Funds.  Agri Industries found the old water line, submitted bid, the bid is over $80K.  
Jordan Mayer with Interstate will be putting bid packet together and submitting a new water 
line design from the Welcome Stop into the Water house. 

• No news from the Department of Transportation (DOT) on the Path Project from Smokey’s 
to the Welcome stop. 

X. New Business 
A. Edward Jones Report from representative, Tammie Richardson 
B. Appoint a Sewer Impact Fee committee 
C. Community Service Program/Volunteer service plans 
D. Pacific Recycling can provide Roll-offs for Steel & small profit provided to Town. 
E. Financial Report from the Mayor. 

a. Delinquent Annual Budgets for FY2020, FY2021, FY2022 
b. Downward trend in cash balance of General Fund, Water Fund, Solid Waste Fund. 



c. Discuss Mayors’ recommendations for the upcoming FY2023 budget.  (Town Code 
2.06.030) 

XI. Adjourn  
***Next Meeting will Monday, May 9, 2022 at 7:00pm.  at the City Office*** 
 
Topic: Regular Town Council Meeting  
Time: Apr 11, 2022 07:00 PM Mountain Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87424919408?pwd=SlJlMXNoRVVYR0FwdVp6MzlreWg5Z
z09  
 
Meeting ID: 874 2491 9408 
Passcode: 012788 
One tap mobile 
+12532158782,,87424919408#,,,,*012788# US (Tacoma) 
+13462487799,,87424919408#,,,,*012788# US (Houston) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 253 215 8782 US  
Meeting ID: 874 2491 9408 
Passcode: 012788 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kbsYvgEbcL  
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87424919408?pwd=SlJlMXNoRVVYR0FwdVp6MzlreWg5Zz09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87424919408?pwd=SlJlMXNoRVVYR0FwdVp6MzlreWg5Zz09
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kbsYvgEbcL


Regular Meeting Minutes of March 14, 2022 
Bainville Town Council 

 

Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 
 

The Regular meeting of the Bainville Town Council was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Toby 
Romo at the Bainville Town Hall, 211 Clark Avenue East.  Present were:  Matt Giese, Carol 
Rasmussen, Toby Romo and Nick Tester.  A quorum was established.  Also present were Clerk, 
Nikki Rogers; Public Works Director, Lyle Lambert; and City Attorney, Greg Hennessey.  Guests 
included: David Norton, Cora Norton, Diane Panasuk, Bernie Popp, Darin Hannum, Ernie Bingham, 
Jo Bingham, Patti Malkuch, Jess Malkuch, Eric Newton 

Matt Giese moved to approve the agenda as submitted. Nick Tester seconded the motion. All voted 
in favor and motion carried. 

Matt Giese moved to approve the minutes dated February 15, 2022 as submitted.  Nick Tester 
seconded the motion. All voted in favor and motion carried. 

Treasurer’s Report: 
• Approve claims with checks dated March 14, 2022 in the amount of $22,793.96.  

Nick Tester moved to approve claims with checks dated March 14, 2022 in the amount of 
$22,793.96. Carol Rasmussen seconded the motion. No discussion on the motion. All voted 
in favor and motion carried.  

• Approve Payroll slips in the amount of $9,211.33  

Matt Giese moved to approve payroll slips in the amount of $9,211.33. Nick Tester seconded 
the motion. No discussion on the motion. All voted in favor and motion carried.  

• Review delinquent accounts.—No Discussion 

• Approve Mayor to sign employee per diem & mileage for conference in Great Falls.  (March 
23, 24, 25) 

Matt Giese moved to approve the Mayor to sign employee per diem & mileage for the 
Montana Rural Water Conference. Nick Tester seconded the motion. Discussion: Clerk 
Rogers clarified with the council if an employee rides with another employee that only the 
person who is driving receives the mileage per diem. By Council consensus that is correct 
there is no rider mileage given to conferences.  All voted in favor and motion carried.  

Public Comment—None  

Public Works Report 

Lyle Lambert, Public Works, stated the new Fire Siren is up at the lagoon but needs to be hooked up 
to the power.  

Fire Chief Report 

Roosevelt County Sheriff’s Report—None  

Local Emergency Planning Committee 

Old Business—None  

New Business 

A. Approve FY 2021 Annual Financial Report. 
Mayor and Council reviewed the Annual Financial Report for FY 2021. Matt Giese moved to 
approve and accept the FY 2021 Annual Financial Report. Carol Rasmussen seconded the 
motion. No further discussion All voted in favor and motion carried.  



Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2 
 

B. Review and approve Town of Bainville Personnel Policy Manual 
Mayor Romo presented the Town of Bainville Personnel Policy Manual. Carol Rasmussen 
moved to accept the Town of Bainville Personnel Policy Manual with no changes to the 
current one. Nick Tester seconded the motion. No Discussion. All voted in favor and motion 
carried.  

C. Approve Clerk/Treasurer Job description 
Mayor Romo updated the Clerk/Treasurer Job description. Matt Giese brought it to the 
council’s attention that the job description did not match what the Town Code Title 2 
Administration and Personnel Chapter 2.08 Clerk-Treasurer. Clerk Rogers did not agree 
with the job description that was presented as it did not do anything with the finances of 
the Town. She would not be able to produce claims or payroll.  
The job description was amended by adding BTC 2.08.020 (A) as first paragraph under the 
Essential Duties and Responsibilities. Nick Tester moved to approve the revised job 
description with the new amendment Bainville Town Code 2.08.020 (A) as first paragraph 
under the Essential Duties and Responsibilities. Carol Rasmussen seconded the motion. No 
further discussion. All voted in favor and motion carried.  

D. Approve Public Works Director job description 
Mayor Romo presented a new job description for Lyle Lambert’s position, Public Works 
Director. Clerk Rogers provided an email from Montana Municipal Interlocal Authority 
Human Resource Consultant, Derrek Shepherd. He asked if this job description needs a 
commercial driver’s license because it requires a drug test. He suggested removing the 
probation period to come into compliance with the Wrongful Discharge from Employment 
Act.  
The job description was amended by removing the probation period and adding “Subject to 
drug and alcohol testing and background check upon hire with random drug and alcohol 
testing after employment.”  Matt Giese moved to approve the new Public Works Director job 
description as amended. Nick Tester seconded the motion. No further discussion. All voted 
in favor and motion carried.  

E. Approve Maintenance Foreman job description 
Mayor Romo presented a new job description for Dan Lambert’s position, Maintenance 
Foreman.  
The job description was amended by add the “Subject to drug and alcohol testing and 
background check upon hire with random drug and alcohol testing after employment.” Matt 
Giese moved to approve the new Maintenance Foreman job description as amended. Nick 
Tester seconded the motion. No further discussion. All voted in favor and motion carried. 
Mayor and Council discussed adding the statement “Subject to drug and alcohol testing and 
background check upon hire with random drug and alcohol testing after employment“ to 
the clerk job description. By Council consensus the statement will be added to the Clerk-
Treasurer job description.  

F. Discuss amending Impact fee Resolution 
• Section 6, Exemption from Wastewater Impact Fees. 
Mayor Romo and the Council discussed removing from Section 6 “Exemption from 
Wastewater Impact Fees” the sentence “The previously existing development must have 
been in place and occupied within the previous 12 months to qualify for this exemption.”  



Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3 
 

An Impact Fee Committee will be set up to look into a number of issues and bring 
recommendations back to council and Mayor. 

G. Approve Mayor to sign Purchase Agreement with Dakota Land Homes. 
Mayor Romo spoke with Betty Romo, County Treasurer and she suggested the Town look 
into taking over the property in lieu of delinquent water and sewer. Matt Giese moved to 
approve proceeding with the acquisition of Dakotaland Property on the northside of town. 
Carol Rasmussen seconded the motion. No further discussion. All voted in favor and motion 
carried.  

 
Nick Tester moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:35 PM.  

 

Attest:       Approved By: 

 
              
Nikki Rogers, CMC     Toby Romo 
Clerk-Treasurer     Mayor 

2 



Town of Bainville
4/11/2022 Financial Trend Monitoring



General Fund
• Auditing costs have been very high.
• The Cash Report Ending Balance is 

declining year over year.
• We can only keep 50% of our Budget in 

cash in the General Fund.  MCA 7-6-4034.
• Approving the use of the paid Sewer 

Impact fees from the man camp could 
increase property taxes over time.

• Selling one of the Bobcat machines would 
reduce warranty costs, maintenance costs 
and place Capital back into the General 
Fund.

• Senate Bill 302 gives the State the 
authority to take and hold our State 
entitlement Revenue & Federal Grants.  
This comes into effect after being 2 years 
delinquent on reporting the Annual 
Budget.  

• The Annual Budget report is due Oct. 1, of 
each year.



Water Fund
• Current DPRW rates are $1.50/1000 

gallons.  This will increase to 
$2.07/1000 gallons in June of 2022.

• Current DPRW base rate is 
$14.25/EDU on 210 EDUs.  This will 
increase to $17.25/EDU in June of 
2022.

• The national average for 
unaccounted water is 25%.  
Bainville’s average for the last 8 
years is 78%.

• The Cash Report ending balance is 
decreasing year over year.  

• Properly bill all properties in Town.
• Approving the use of the paid Sewer 

Impact fees from the man camp 
would increase revenue.

• We need to aggressively pursue 
finding leaks in our water system to 
reduce lost revenue.



Wastewater/Sewer Fund
• By state code, we can hold (cash reserve) 200% 

of our budget in the Water, Sewer and Solid 
Waste funds.  MCA 17-2-302.

• Properly bill all properties in Town.
• Implement a strict policy on delinquent 

accounts.
• Approving the use of the man camp Impact fee’s 

would increase revenue.
• Use the excess Capital in our Cash Balance to pay 

off the Sewer Loan.



Solid Waste/Garbage Fund

• We are losing around $3000/year in 
the cash balance.  

• Our expenses are going to increase 
by around $6000 per year for FY23.  

• Make sure all users are being billed 
properly.

• A strict policy on delinquent utility 
bills would help.  

• Approving the use of the paid 
Sewer Impact Fee’s from the man 
camp would increase revenue.



2023 Budget Planning


	Regular Agenda--220411packet.pdf
	Minutes--031422
	Power Point 4-2022
	Town of Bainville
	General Fund
	Water Fund
	Wastewater/Sewer Fund
	Solid Waste/Garbage Fund
	2023 Budget Planning


